
 
 

City of Cincinnati Retirement System 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

 

Agenda 
 

September 12, 2024 / 2:00 P.M. 
 City Hall, Council Chambers and via Zoom  

 
Members       CRS Staff 
Bill Moller, Chair      Jon Salstrom 
Tom Gamel, Vice Chair       
Kathy Rahtz        
Mark Menkhaus, Jr.      Law 
Monica Morton       Linda Smith          
Tom West 
Seth Walsh 
Aliya Riddle 
 
 
Call to Order    
 
Public Comment 
 
Approval of Minutes 

 August 1, 2024 
 

Report from Benefits and Performance Evaluation 
 
Informational – Staff Report 

• Marquette Investment Report 
• Staff Update on Open Positions 
• Budget and Operational Update 
• 115 Subcommittee Update 
• Futures Commissions Update 
• Fiduciary Audit Recommendations Update 
• Mayoral Trustee Appointment  

 
Old Business 

• Survivor Benefits Ordinance  
• Term Limits Ordinance 
• Points Grid Ordinance 
• Annual Report to Mayor & Council 

 
New Business 

• Draft Trustee Training Policy 
• Trustee Training Manual and Education Annually 

 
Adjournment   
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, October 3, 2024, 2:00 P.M. City Hall Council Chambers and via Zoom 



 

 

 

City of Cincinnati Retirement System 
Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 

August 1, 2024 / 2:00 P.M. 
City Hall – Council Chambers and remote 

 
Board Members      Administration 
Bill Moller, Chair      Jon Salstrom 
Tom Gamel, Co-Chair       
Kathy Rahtz        
Mark Menkhaus Jr. 
Monica Morton       Law 
Tom West       Ian Doig 
Seth Walsh        
Aliya Riddle 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Moller called the meeting to order at 2:09 p.m. and a roll call of attendance was taken. Trustees 
Moller, Gamel, Rahtz, Menkhaus, Morton, West, Walsh and Riddle were present.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No Public Comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes of the Board meeting of July 11, 2024, was moved by Trustee Rahtz and 
seconded by Trustee Morton. The minutes were approved by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Report from Investment Committee 
Chair Moller explained there was a presentation of the Quarterly investment report from Marquette and 
discussed the current market environment. There was also a presentation from PRIGIM overviewing the 
real estate market and what they expect in the future. Motion to approve investment and market report, 
no second needed. The motion was approved by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Informational – Staff Report 
Marquette Investment Report 
Chair Moller referenced the Investment Report that is included in the packet.  
 
 
 



 

 

Staff Update on Open Positions 
Director Salstrom explained that there are currently 3 positions being filled; an Accountant position that 
they are interviewing for next week, an Administrative Specialist that he hoped to schedule the next 
week, and a Senior Computer Programmer Analyst that’s posting that closed the next day. 
 
115 Subcommittee Update 
Director Salstrom explained that CRS has met with the Law Department and plan to engage with Ice 
Miller regarding OPERS. 
 
Futures Commissions Motion Update 
Director Salstrom explained that he has not seen any update from the City Administration as far as a 
report. He anticipates there being an update the following week. Trustee Walsh confirmed that he has 
not seen or heard of any updates. 
 
Fiduciary Audit Recommendations Update 
No update from last meeting. The Governance Report is the Retirement staff’s main focus. 
 
Mayoral Trustee Appointments 
Director Salstrom explained that next week, at Council, CRS should have a new Mayoral Trustee sent to 
Council so he will have more to report at the next Board meeting. 
 
Old Business 
Survivor Benefits Ordinance 
Director Salstrom explained that there is a final version of the ordinance that will be on August 5th 
Budget & Finance agenda for approval, then will go to Council on August 7th. 
 
Term Limits Ordinance 
Trustee Walsh explained that the ordinance is on agenda for Council next week. 
 
Points Gird Ordinance 
Director Salstrom explained that there is a final version of the ordinance that will be on August 5th 
Budget & Finance agenda for approval, then will go to Council on August 7th. 
 
Annual Report Letter to CMO, Mayor & Council 
Director Salstrom explained that there is a final version of the report that will be on August 5th Budget & 
Finance agenda for approval, then will go to Council on August 7th. Chair Moller confirmed with the 
Board members that this should wait until after the first Council meeting since the agenda is already so 
long. 
 
Dental RFP 
Director Salstrom explained that they have 4 submissions, but they decided to move that back to 8/12 to 
give everyone a little more time. Horan, the healthcare consultant, will be conducting analysis and 
provide some feedback.  
 
New Business 
None. 
 
 



 

 

Adjournment 
Following a motion to adjourn by Trustee Gamel and seconded by Trustee Morton. The Board approved 
the motion by unanimous roll call vote. The meeting was adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
Meeting video link: https://archive.org/details/crs-board-8-1-24 
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, September 12, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. – City Hall Council Chambers and via Zoom  
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 

Secretary 
 
 

https://archive.org/details/crs-board-8-1-24


July 31, 2024

Cincinnati Retirement System

City of Cincinnati

Retirement System

Executive Summary





Total Fund Composite As of July 31, 2024
Summary of Cash Flows

  Last Month
_

Beginning Market Value $2,325,097,315
Net Cash Flow -$10,216,569
Net Investment Change $38,811,083
Ending Market Value $2,353,691,829

_

Market Value

Market Value
($) % of Portfolio Policy % Policy Difference

($)
_

Total Fund Composite 2,353,691,829 100.0 100.0 0

Fixed Income Composite 491,144,974 20.9 22.5 -38,435,688

Private Debt Composite 66,908,199 2.8 6.5 -86,081,770

U.S. Equity Composite 676,679,253 28.7 28.5 5,877,082

Non-U.S. Equity Composite 372,440,720 15.8 16.0 -4,149,973

Volatility Risk Premium Composite 60,676,310 2.6 2.5 1,834,014

Real Estate Composite 153,419,900 6.5 6.0 12,198,391

Infrastructure Composite 251,421,017 10.7 10.0 16,051,834

Private Equity Composite 265,842,758 11.3 8.0 77,547,412

Total Cash Equivalents 15,158,699 0.6 -- 15,158,699
XXXXX

Marquette Associates, Inc. 1

Performance

1 Mo 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Inception Inception
Date

_

Total Fund Composite 1.7% 5.1% 6.5% 9.3% 4.3% 8.3% 7.1% 8.8% May-85
Target Benchmark 1.9% 5.3% 6.7% 9.5% 3.4% 8.1% 7.3% -- May-85
Actuarial Rate 7.5% 0.6% 1.8% 4.3% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% May-85

Fixed Income Composite 2.1% 5.0% 2.3% 5.7% -1.5% 1.6% 2.6% 5.0% Nov-95
Bloomberg US Aggregate TR 2.3% 5.1% 1.6% 5.1% -2.6% 0.2% 1.6% 4.2% Nov-95

Private Debt Composite -0.2% 2.3% 6.7% 11.3% 7.4% -- -- 4.7% Sep-20
Bloomberg US Aggregate TR 2.3% 5.1% 1.6% 5.1% -2.6% 0.2% 1.6% -2.0% Sep-20
Bloomberg US High Yield TR 1.9% 4.0% 4.6% 11.1% 2.2% 4.2% 4.6% 4.4% Sep-20

U.S. Equity Composite 2.8% 10.1% 14.8% 19.8% 7.9% 13.2% 11.1% 9.7% Feb-89
Russell 3000 1.9% 10.0% 15.7% 21.1% 8.1% 14.2% 12.6% 10.9% Feb-89

Non-U.S. Equity Composite 2.2% 5.3% 8.0% 9.7% 1.9% 6.5% 4.2% 5.9% May-93
MSCI ACWI ex USA 2.3% 5.2% 8.1% 9.7% 1.8% 6.3% 4.2% -- May-93

Volatility Risk Premium Composite 0.7% 5.1% 8.0% 10.3% -- -- -- 6.1% Jan-22
CBOE Put Write Index 1.6% 4.7% 9.1% 9.1% 7.5% 8.2% 7.0% 6.8% Jan-22

Real Estate Composite 0.1% 0.1% -2.7% -8.6% 2.1% 3.7% 6.6% 4.8% Aug-07
NFI-ODCE 0.0% -0.4% -3.2% -9.4% 0.3% 2.2% 5.4% 3.8% Aug-07

Infrastructure Composite 0.2% 1.7% 3.2% 7.7% 9.1% 9.2% 7.2% 8.3% Aug-08
3 Month T-Bill +4% 0.8% 2.3% 5.5% 9.7% 7.3% 6.2% 5.6% 5.0% Aug-08

Private Equity Composite 0.0% -0.1% 1.5% 5.3% 6.7% 13.2% 12.3% 8.8% Jul-93
Burgiss Global All Private Equity 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 3.7% 3.5% 14.5% 13.8% 15.2% Jul-93



 
 
 

DISCLOSURE 
 

Marquette Associates, Inc. (“Marquette”) has prepared this document for the 
exclusive use by the client or third party for which it was prepared. The information 
herein was obtained from various sources, including but not limited to third party 
investment managers, the client's custodian(s) accounting statements, commercially 
available databases, and other economic and financial market data sources. 

The sources of information used in this document are believed to be reliable. 
Marquette has not independently verified all of the information in this document and 
its accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Marquette accepts no liability for any direct or 
consequential losses arising from its use. The information provided herein is as of the 
date appearing in this material only and is subject to change without prior notice. 
Thus, all such information is subject to independent verification and we urge clients to 
compare the information set forth in this statement with the statements you receive 
directly from the custodian in order to ensure accuracy of all account information. Past 
performance does not guarantee future results and investing involves risk of loss. No 
graph, chart, or formula can, in and of itself, be used to determine which securities or 
investments to buy or sell.  

Forward‐looking statements, including without limitation any statement or prediction 
about a future event contained in this presentation, are based on a variety of estimates 
and assumptions by Marquette, including, but not limited to, estimates of future 
operating results, the value of assets and market conditions. These estimates and 
assumptions, including the risk assessments and projections referenced, are inherently 
uncertain and are subject to numerous business, industry, market, regulatory, geo‐
political, competitive, and financial risks that are outside of Marquette's control. There 
can be no assurance that the assumptions made in connection with any forward‐
looking statement will prove accurate, and actual results may differ materially.  

The inclusion of any forward‐looking statement herein should not be regarded as an 
indication that Marquette considers forward‐looking statements to be a reliable 
prediction of future events. The views contained herein are those of Marquette and 
should not be taken as financial advice or a recommendation to buy or sell any security. 
Any forecasts, figures, opinions or investment techniques and strategies described are 
intended for informational purposes only. They are based on certain assumptions and 
current market conditions, and although accurate at the time of writing, are subject to 
change without prior notice. Opinions, estimates, projections, and comments on 
financial market trends constitute our judgment and are subject to change without 
notice. Marquette expressly disclaims all liability in respect to actions taken based on 
any or all of the information included or referenced in this document. The information 
is being provided based on the understanding that each recipient has sufficient 
knowledge and experience to evaluate the merits and risks of investing. 

Marquette is an independent investment adviser registered under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Registration does not imply a certain level of skill 
or training. More information about Marquette including our investment strategies, 
fees and objectives can be found in our ADV Part 2, which is available upon request. 



CRS Investment Dashboard 31-Jul-24

Investment Objectives

1Y 3Y 5Y
CRS Fund - Net Return 9.30% 4.30% 8.30%
CRS Actuarial Assumed Rate of Return 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Difference 1.80% -3.20% 0.80%
Status Above Below Above

1Y 3Y 5Y
CRS Fund - Net Return 9.30% 4.30% 8.30%
CRS Passive Index 13.80% 3.70% 8.50%

Difference -4.50% 0.60% -0.20%
Status Below Above Below

1Y 3Y 5Y
CRS Fund - Net Return 9.30% 4.30% 8.30%
CRS Policy Index 9.50% 3.40% 8.10%

Difference -0.20% 0.90% 0.20%
Status Below Above Above

Status - Long-term Annualized Return versus Actuarial Assumed Rate of Return

Status - Long-term Annualized Return versus Passive Index (50% Russell 3000/ 20% MSCI ACWI ex US /30% US AGG) 

Status - Long-term Annualized Return versus Policy Index



CRS Benefits and Demographics Dashboard 1-Sep-24

2021 2022 2023 2024
Sum of Deceased Members 213 206 204 97
Sum of Terminated Members 164 156 178 102
Sum of Retirees 4216 4160 4125 4119
Sum of DROP 191 203 176 116
Sum of F/T Active Members 2504 2770 3023 3206

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

CRS Demographics
(thru 09/01/2024)

Sum of Deceased Members

Sum of Terminated Members

Sum of Retirees

Sum of DROP

Sum of F/T Active Members



CRS Benefits and Demographics Dashboard 1-Sep-24

2021 2022 2023 2024
Sum of Refunded/Non-Retirees Benefits Paid $2,647,835.99 $2,694,546.81 $2,780,272.59 $819,142.99
Sum of DROP Disbursement Paid $12,100,505.14 $7,603,078.41 $11,232,153.30 $7,674,527.93
Sum of Other Benefits Paid (Disability/Suvivor/Burial) $3,521,886.97 $3,278,624.36 $3,134,244.62 $2,300,930.41
Sum of Retiree Benefits Paid $173,504,198.40 $176,693,255.18 $179,852,770.72 $134,249,857.68

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

CRS Benefits Paid
(thru 09/01/2024)



CRS Risk Dashboard 1-Sep-24

Risk Category Risk Description Rank
Risk 

Level

Expected 
Risk Level 

Trend
Risk 

Response Change Mitigation Activities Risk Owner
Reporting and Oversight 

Committee

Personnel
Ability to attract and retain talented staff; succession 
planning.

1 High ↔ Mitigate No Change

CRS has hired additional staff to ensure all CRS 
functions covered and with trained backup. 
Implement succession plan for 3 key staff near 
retirement.

Executive Director Board of Trustees

Funding
A lack of sound funding for the plan could lead to 
insufficient assets to pay for long-term benefits and 
financial obligations. 

2 High ↔ Mitigate No Change
Seek City adoption of incremental contribution rate 
increase; next step is moving up from 17.75%.

Executive Director Board of Trustees

Cyber

Cyber security controls could lead to breaches or 
sabotage of CRS systems. Unauthorized access of 
confidential information could result in state or 
federal law violations and harm the best interests of 
CRS and its members.

3 Medium ↔ Monitor No Change
Monitor ETS security plans. Evaluate and monitor CRS 
servers and venders protacol annually

Executive Director, 
ETS Director

Performance Evaluation

Market
Market volatility could lead to undesirable 
investment outcomes due to montly liquidity needs 
to pay benefits. 

4 Medium ↓ Monitor No Change

Market volatility should remain elevated until after the 
elections.  Gold and US Dollar to be headwinds to 
ACWI.  Fed funds appear to be moving lower following 
Fed's Jackson Hole speech.

Executive Director, 
Marquette

Investment Committee

Counterparty
Business partners or entities are unable to fulfill their 
obligations or do not complete transactions as 
agreed upon. 

5 Medium ↔ Monitor No Change
Diversifying manager and vender exposure to limit 
counterparty risk. Shift check printing and 
reconciliation process to 5/3 Bank.

Executive Director
Audit Committee (TBD), Investment 

Committee

Operational

Event causes a major business interruption, such as 
late monthly pension payroll.  Generally strive to 
improve efficiencies lowering plan cost and costomer 
satisfaction

6 Medium ↔ Mitigate No Change

Complete document scanning project, with image to 
accessible and secure server.  Evaluate resilience and 
efficiency or pension payroll process.  Develop 
continuity of operations plan for CRS pension 
operations and payroll.

Executive Director Audit Committee (TBD)

Governance
Not following processes and procedures in decision 
making.

7 Medium ↔ Mitigate No Change
Consider creation of Audit Committee. Consolidate 
Board manual, rules and policies into one document

Board of Trustees Governance Committee

Physical
Monitor facilities for inadequaciese; general facilities 
management; improve space utilization.

8 Medium ↔ Accept No Change

Current space is adequate; a physical move was 
completed recently and would be extremely 
disruptive now.  Improve remote access and 
redundances to improve worker flexiblity.

Executive Director Benefits

Compliance 
Evaluation of legal, tax and operational complaince 
variations to the City Solicitors office for review

9 Low ↔ Accept No Change
The preponderance of current request for review are 
due to new contracts with investment managers and 
services providers 

Executive Director Performance Evaluation

Legislative
Legislative events may lead to adverse relations, 
unfavorable investment and operation policy and/or 
restricted funding.

10 Low ↓ Monitor No Change
Conduct regular meetings with Council members, 
Mayor and CMO.

Board, Executive 
Director

Board of Trustees

High Represents immediate risk to the plan.  Trustees should be mindful and monitoring regularly for resolution
Medium Represents concern for the plan.  Trustees should determine the appropriate interval for evaluation and montitoring

Low Represents limited risk to the plan.  No plan of action is required. 



CRS Compliance Dashboard 1-Sep-24

Investment Strategy and Asset Diversification

1. Following prudent investment strategy by implementing the following: Completion Date As of Date Service Provider
Formal asset allocation study every 3 years Jan'23 Sept'22 Marquette

Review strategic asset allocation parameters annually Jan'24 Dec'23 Marquette

Review Investment Policy Statement annually May'24 May'24

2. Maintain proper diversification of assets by: Completion Date Status
Fund is within strategic asset allocation limits Q2'24 Ok

Investment managers are in compliance Q2'24 Ok Marquette

Manager diversification and counterpary risk are reviewed Q2'24 Ok

Legal , TAX, Regulatory and Operational

3. Legal, tax and operational review Completion Date Status
Monitor pension operations quarterly Q2'24 Ok

Monitor legal, tax and regulatory quarterly Q2'24 Ok

4. Monitor adminstrative budget and Professional service : Completion Date Status
Monitor budget and professional services fees quarterly Q2'24 Ok

Professional services review annually Q1'24 Ok



CRS Budget Dashboard

Summary

Actual
Q2,2024

50% of 
Budget

Difference 
50% of 

Budget v 

% of Budget 
Utilized

Budget
 2024

Actual
2023

Actual
2022

Actual
2021

Actual
2020

Office Staff 912,509 1,151,075 238,566 40% 2,302,150 1,540,812 1,656,523 1,460,807 1,427,066
Office Expenses 45,189 65,500 20,311 34% 131,000 76,930 104,313 62,767 69,261
Training and Travel 3,661 44,750 41,089 4% 89,500 22,412 23,156 355 425
Data Processing 178,197 312,305 134,108 29% 624,610 291,149 388,035 396,323 326,019
Professional Fees 276,874 287,260 10,386 48% 574,520 307,000 313,559 229,309 397,381
Other 1,720 3,750 2,030 23% 7,500 4,135 3,260 3,175 3,994
Fund Ins 0 53,350 53,350 0% 106,700 99,952 96,959 71,127 67,887
Total Operating Cost 1,418,150 1,917,990 499,840 3,835,980 2,342,390 2,585,805 2,223,863 2,292,033

Member
Cost (50% expectation) 112,639,135 117,961,050 5,321,915 48% 235,922,100 222,548,260 216,971,971 221,785,744 200,433,689

 Contribution
(50% Expectation) 36,486,476 34,584,475 1,902,001 53% 69,168,950 67,373,843 64,443,827 59,941,004 56,566,387

Net Investment
Returns
(50% Expectation) 115,935,578 76,857,383 39,078,196 153,714,765 251,362,593 (216,487,362) 406,692,091 178,957,178

30-Jun-24



Board Board, Adm. Priority Board Goverance IC Staff
Performance 

evaluation
Audit 

Status

1.1 Improve definition and clarity of roles and authorities of:

•         The Board of trustees Initiated X X

•         Board chair Initiated X X
•         Individual trustees Initiated X X
•         City Council and Mayor Initiated X
•         City Manager and City Finance Director Initiated X
•         CRS Director Initiated X

1.2
The City should expand Board of Trustees personnel authorities to align with the Board’s responsibilities, for example, naming the CRS

Director as a direct report to the Board, with authority to hire/fire, evaluate, and set compensation.
Initiated X

1.3

The City Solicitor should provide the Board of Trustees with independent external legal counsel or establish a policy and process that

allows CRS to retain independent external counsel and/or hire internal CRS counsel to address potential conflicts of interest associated

with the City Solicitor’s representation of other clients on the same matters.

Initiated X X

1.4
Confirm the Board’s authority, as the named fiduciary, to contract with actuaries, investment consultants, investment managers,

custodial banks, benefit providers, and legal counsel, all of which require unique pension and investment expertise.
Initiated X X

1.5
The City Manager should allow CRS trustees who are not City employees to vote on CRS procurement decisions; the Board, as

fiduciaries, should have final authority on those decisions.
Initiated X X

1.6

If the CRS Board is not given authority to hire/fire/evaluate/compensate the Director, work with the City Manager to develop a

Memorandum of Understanding that addresses the City Manager’s role as a potential fiduciary and formalizes procedures where the

Board and City Manager, Finance Director or other officers have overlapping responsibilities (e.g., setting goals for and evaluating the

Executive Director); CRS may need to consider options for engagement of independent fiduciary legal counsel to assist with this

initiative.

Initiated X X

GREEN - SHORTER TERM COMPLETION
RED - LONGER TERM COMPLETION
Board - CRS Board has authority to complete
Board, Adm. - CRS Board and City Administration have shared authority to complete
Priority - CRS Board priority to complete as soon as possible
Note: Some Recommendations may require CSA update.

2.1
Aggregate and organize the Board policies from all sources into a Board Governance Manual with online access and links to underlying

document provisions; include the mission statement, goals, trustee responsibilities, committee charters and the Code of Ethics.
Initiated X X

2.2 Develop new policies or formalize current policies and practices for:

•         Trustee personal financial disclosures Initiated X
•         Board self-evaluation / Board education policy Initiated X
•         Funding Initiated X
•         Separate investment policy statement for the 115 trust fund that is tailored to its liabilities Reviewed X
•         Strategic planning, in coordination with the City Initiated X
•         Collection of claims in securities class actions Initiated X

AssignmentFunston Performance Audit - Summary of Recommendations

1.  Legal and Regulatory

2.  Governance Framework

Page 1



Board Board, Adm. Priority Board Goverance IC Staff
Performance 

evaluation
Audit 

•         Succession planning, in cooperation with relevant City appointing authorities Initiated X
•         Business continuity and resumption Initiated X
•         Independent governance and benchmarking reviews Reviewed X
•         External communications by Board members Initiated X
•         Due diligence and reporting for referral of service provider candidates by trustees, along with limits on candidate contacts with

trustees during an RFP process
Initiated X

2.3 Reduce the size of each committee to three or five members to better utilize trustee time. Reviewed X
2.4 Adopt a consent agenda for approval of routine business and reports. Reviewed X

2.5
Conduct periodic board retreats for more in-depth discussion on key topics, conducting board self-evaluations and executive director

evaluations, and trustee education. Not Reviewed Yet
X

2.6
Following implementation of the recommendations in this report, conduct a biennial self-evaluation process, potentially with external

assistance; this process should help to inform educational priorities. Not Reviewed Yet
X

2.7
Define ongoing training requirements for Board members, including onboarding plan for new trustees and required fiduciary training;

link training to board self-assessment findings and the calendar of Board agenda action items. Not Reviewed Yet
X X

2.8
Formalize a CRS stakeholder communications plan that identifies key stakeholders, communications responsibilities, and messages and

objectives. Not Reviewed Yet
X

2.9 Issue new system email accounts to be used by trustees for all CRS-related business. Reviewed X X

2.10
Discuss with the Director and the investment consultant how reporting could be improved and executive summaries better utilized to

enhance trustee understanding and insight. Completed X X

2.11

Appoint a Board Audit Committee with oversight of internal and external audits to commission an independent financial audit and

obtain internal audit services from the City Internal Audit Department and/or an independent firm; include oversight of enterprise

performance and risk in the committee charter responsibilities.

Initiated X X

3.1 Develop a separate Statement of Investment Beliefs (SIB) to guide development and implementation of the strategic asset allocation.
Completed

X

3.2
Develop a liquidity policy as part of the Investment Policy Statement (IPS) to ensure that the cash needs of the organization are

effectively and efficiently met. Completed
X X

3.3 Develop a separate IPS for the 115 Trust (Health Care Trust) that reflects the unique liability structure of the 115 Trust. Reviewed X X

3.4
Extend the time horizon for the strategic asset allocation to 3-5 years and only make changes to the target asset allocation as part of a

comprehensive Asset Liability Study.
Completed

X

3.5
Include a more comprehensive rebalancing policy in the IPS that describes how rebalancing is linked to the Board’s investment

philosophy and what the process should be.
Completed

X

3.6
Discuss with Marquette Associates how reporting might be improved through development of an introductory executive summary,

with an exception reporting approach, to the quarterly reporting package focused on actual performance compared to the IPS.
Completed

X X

4.1 Clarify the Board’s responsibilities and role (or lack thereof) in pension and benefits administration. Initiated X X

4.2
Consider if pension staffing resources and capabilities should be improved through Implementation of a member contact center

telecommunications system.
Initiated X X

4.3
Develop a long-term plan with service, performance, and cost objectives, to ensure that member self-service, website redesign, and

other improvements, are all developed and implemented in a coordinated manner and achieve desired results. Not Reviewed Yet
X

4.4 Charter a pension administration cost and performance benchmarking report.
Not Reviewed Yet X

4.5 Consult with its actuary and determine if an adjustment to the investment assumed rate of return should be recommended.
Reviewed X

4.6
Develop and adopt a formal actuarial and funding policy describing responsibilities and frequency of actuarial and asset/liability study

processes and addressing investment, demographic and benefit risks.
Reviewed

X X

3.  Investment Program and Operations

4.  Pension Operations

Page 2



Board Board, Adm. Priority Board Goverance IC Staff
Performance 

evaluation
Audit 

5.1
Develop succession planning and implement a cross training program for staff to minimize key person risk and enhance staff

development.
Initiated X

5.2
Work with the City Administration and the Law Department to delegate authority to the CRS Board to engage external counsel to

obtain more timely legal support or unique expertise when appropriate.  See also Recommendation 1.3.
Initiated X X

5.3 Develop a long-term IT plan that identifies future needs. Initiated X
5.4 Work with the City Enterprise Technology Solutions (ETS) Department to ensure security is adequate and tested. Initiated X X
5.5 Update the documented disaster recovery plan. Initiated X X

6.1
Assign leadership, training, and monitoring responsibilities for compliance to ensure compliance with conflict of interest and ethics

policies.
Initiated X X

6.2 Develop a repository of risk-ranked compliance requirements. Initiated X

6.3 Establish tracking mechanisms to identify and escalate non-compliance. Completed X

GREEN - SHORTER TERM COMPLETION
RED - LONGER TERM COMPLETION

Board - CRS Board has authority to complete
Board, Adm. - CRS Board and City Administration have shared authority to complete
Priority - CRS Board priority to complete as soon as possible

Note: Some Recommendations may require CSA update.

6. Compliance

5.  Administrative Operations

Page 3































Cincinnati Retirement System 
Board of Trustees

2023 Annual Report

1



CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Funding Status

2



• Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate 
(ADC): 32.46%

• City 2023 rate = 19.1%
• FT Employee Contribution Rate: 9%
• City Employer Contribution Rate: 17.00%
• City 2023 ERIP payment ($2.7mm)
• City 2023 “Stabilization Fund” payment ($2mm)

CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Funding Benefits: Contributions

3



CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Funding Benefits: Contributions

4

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

CRS Employer Contribution Rates (Pension)

Actuarial Actual



CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Funding Benefits: Investments

5

Plan Year

Actuarial 
Rate of 
Return CRS Return Funded Status

2014 7.5% 6.4% 64.3%
 2015* 7.5% -0.1% 77.1%
2016 7.5% 8.9% 76.9%
2017 7.5% 14.9% 75.5%
2018 7.5% -4.3% 72.6%
2019 7.5% 16.8% 71.2%
2020 7.5% 10.3% 70.5%
2021 7.5% 17.4% 71.6%
2022 7.5% -9.3% 69.3%
2023 7.5% 12.1% 68.8%

* CSA

**Marquette Associates Median Plan Return**
10-Year Compound Average 6.9% 6.6%
5-Year Compound Average 9.0% 8.4%

Annual CRS Rates of Investment Return & Funded Status



CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→2023 Fiduciary Audit 

6

• Purpose to review CRS standards and practices and compare 
to peers and industry norms:

• Focused on Legal & Regulatory, Governance, Investment, Pension 

Operations, administrative and compliance.
• The report concludes that the CRS Board of Trustees has been 

functioning effectively, the Director and the staff have been 
effectively providing services to active and retired members, 
and relations among the Board, CRS staff and other City 
departments have been collaborative and cordial. 

• Report recommended opportunities for improvement, which the 
Board is reviewing and implementing.



1. City Council adopt a plan to continue increasing the Pension Trust employer 
contribution 0.9% incrementally on an annual basis to assure full funding in 
2045 

2. Incremental Annual Increase Plan be updated every two years in 
anticipation of the City’s fiscal year biennial budget. 

3. City Council approve and appropriate the Pension Trust employer 
contribution in accordance with each updated Incremental Annual Increase 
Plan.

4. City Manager engage with the CRS Trustees on the Futures Commission 
analysis and recommendations regarding the future of CRS and funding of 
the Trusts.

5. City works with the CRS Board of Trustees to fulfill the recommendations 
from the Fiduciary Audit (Governance Report) completed by outside 
consultants.

CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Recommendations to City Council

7



CINCINNATI RETIREMENT SYSTEM
→Scenarios to Fully Fund by 2045 & Status Quo

8

E'r Contr Rate Funded Ratio E'r Contr Rate Funded Ratio
12/31/2023 17.00% 68.8% 17.0% 68.8%
12/31/2024 17.75% 67.6% 17.8% 67.6%
12/31/2025 17.75% 66.4% 18.7% 66.4%
12/31/2026 17.75% 63.9% 19.6% 64.0%
12/31/2027 17.75% 63.6% 20.5% 64.0%
12/31/2028 17.75% 62.8% 21.4% 63.6%
12/31/2029 17.75% 62.1% 22.3% 63.4%
12/31/2030 17.75% 61.4% 23.2% 63.4%
12/31/2031 17.75% 60.6% 24.1% 63.5%
12/31/2032 17.75% 59.9% 25.0% 63.8%
12/31/2033 17.75% 59.2% 25.9% 64.3%
12/31/2034 17.75% 58.5% 26.8% 65.1%
12/31/2035 17.75% 57.8% 27.7% 66.2%
12/31/2036 17.75% 57.1% 28.6% 67.5%
12/31/2037 17.75% 56.4% 29.5% 69.2%
12/31/2038 17.75% 55.7% 30.4% 71.3%
12/31/2039 17.75% 55.2% 31.3% 73.9%
12/31/2040 17.75% 54.7% 32.2% 77.0%
12/31/2041 17.75% 54.3% 33.1% 80.6%
12/31/2042 17.75% 54.1% 34.0% 84.9%
12/31/2043 17.75% 54.1% 34.9% 89.7%
12/31/2044 17.75% 54.3% 35.8% 95.2%
12/31/2045 17.75% 54.6% 36.7% 101.4%
Cheiron Projections August 2024

Schedule 
of funded 

Raios

Flat E'r Rate of 17% Increase E'r Rate by 0.90%/year
Earnings Assumption of 7.50



Trustee Training Policy 

Purpose 

To ensure that all trustees of the Cincinnati Retirement System (CRS) are well-informed about 
their fiduciary responsibilities and the operations of the pension plan. 

Training Requirements 

1. Initial Training: 
o All new trustees must complete an initial training program within six months of 

their appointment. 
o Topics include  

1. Plan overview and fiduciary duties,  
2. Plan governance,  
3. Trustee responsibilities, and 
4. Investment principles 
5. Actuarial principles 

Delivery Methods 

• In-person or online presentation from Executive Director. 
• In-house training sessions conducted by staff or consultants. 
• Online courses and webinars from the City of Cincinnati. 
• Attendance at industry conferences and workshops 

o NCPERS  
o International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans 

2. Ongoing Training: 
o Trustees must complete a minimum of 8 hours of training annually. 
o Topics include updates on  

1. Advanced investment principals, 
2. Advanced actuarial principles,  
3. Healthcare education 
4. Legal and regulatory changes, 
5. Risk management and ethics 

Delivery Methods 

• In-person or online presentation from Executive Director or consultants. 
• Conferences and symposiums hosted by relevant industry organizations. 

o NCPERS  
o International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans 

• In-person or online workshops and seminars. 

 



Tracking and Reporting 

• Trustees must submit proof of training completion to the board's secretary. 
• The board's secretary will maintain training records and report annually to the board on 

the status of trustee training compliance. 


	1 Board Agenda 9-12-2024
	City of Cincinnati Retirement System
	Board of Trustees Meeting
	September 12, 2024 / 2:00 P.M.
	City Hall, Council Chambers and via Zoom
	Members       CRS Staff
	Bill Moller, Chair      Jon Salstrom
	Tom Gamel, Vice Chair
	Kathy Rahtz
	Mark Menkhaus, Jr.      Law
	Monica Morton       Linda Smith          Tom West
	Seth Walsh
	Aliya Riddle
	Call to Order
	Public Comment
	Approval of Minutes
	• August 1, 2024
	Report from Benefits and Performance Evaluation
	Informational – Staff Report
	• Marquette Investment Report
	• Staff Update on Open Positions
	• Budget and Operational Update
	• 115 Subcommittee Update
	• Futures Commissions Update
	• Fiduciary Audit Recommendations Update
	• Mayoral Trustee Appointment
	• Survivor Benefits Ordinance
	• Term Limits Ordinance
	• Points Grid Ordinance
	• Annual Report to Mayor & Council
	New Business
	• Draft Trustee Training Policy
	• Trustee Training Manual and Education Annually
	Adjournment
	Next Meeting: Thursday, October 3, 2024, 2:00 P.M. City Hall Council Chambers and via Zoom

	2 CRS Board Minutes 08-01-24
	3 CRS - 7-2024
	4 2024 CRS Dashboards
	5 2024 CRS Dashboards - Budget
	6 Funston Summary of Recommendations with assignments
	Complete Set

	7 survivor Benefits ORD
	8 Term Limits ORD
	9 Healthcare PointsGrid ORD
	10 Cincinnati Retirment System Board of Trustees Annual Report
	11 Draft Trustee Training Policy Aug'24
	Trustee Training Policy
	Purpose
	Training Requirements
	Delivery Methods
	Delivery Methods
	Tracking and Reporting


